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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We ha_ve audited the financial statements of Pickrr Technologies Private Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our ‘opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its loss including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the cthical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the

financial statements.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's BO&‘.I“FI of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation oflll'esc financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
ggﬁf;ilvpi:lrfonnagce mch.]dmg other COl_nprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
A STK IR ScERE v e accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian

eeatming Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also 1nclu§es maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
Sanglilardlng ot the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing theA financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
basec} on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude t}{at a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. s:‘valuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
isclosures, and.whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events ind
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate wi_th those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing ofjthc audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1*
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books a) except that the back-up of books of account and
other books and papers maintained in electronic mode was not kept in servers physically located in
India on a daily basis from April 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 and b) except for the matters stated

in paragraph 2 (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as

amended, specified under section 133 of the Act;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 2(i)(vi) below
on reporting under rule 11(g).
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2) With respec 3 vy i ; ; i
(g ot “1 respect to the ml-.\.]uaq of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure

R

2" to this report;

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for
the vear ended March 31, 2025

@ :{"}}: r‘-gi’““ to_lhe Dlhe_r matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule I'1
the ompanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantec, security or the like on behalf of the

Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entitics
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries; and
procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and

tances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
der sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

c¢) Based on such audit
appropriate in the circums
that the representations un

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

etsuite from Tally during the year. Based on our
examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data when using
ive access rights and audit trail for accounting and certain related
¢l 1o log any direct changes to the database and
bled, as described in note 43(viii)

Vi. The Company has migrated 10 Oracle N

certain privileged / administrat
software was not enabled at the database ley
except in respect of Tally where audit trail feature was not ena
to the financial statements.
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Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of i'llldll F]ra}:] fez::;i
being tampered with in respect of Oracle Netsuite. Additionally, the audit trai mse -
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention excep
respect of Tally as stated in the aforesaid note.

per Sanji¢ Bachchani
Partner

Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 25400419BMOPQY4156

Place of Signature: Gurugra, Haryana
Date: September 26, 2025
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ﬁnnexurc ‘1" to l‘lle Auditor’s Report referred to in paragraph of “Report on Other Legal and
cgulatory Requirements™ in our report of even date

Re: Pickir Technologies Private Limited (*the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account a.lrld records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief,
we state that:

(1 (@ (A) The (_Jon_lpany has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Compgny has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company
and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) All Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in the
previous year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three
years which is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets.

() There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the
Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and

rules made thereunder.

Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals during
the year by management. In our opinion, the coverage and the procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. There were no discrepancies of 10% or
more noticed, in the aggregate for each class of inventory. There were no inventory

lying with the third parties.

(i) (a)

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five
crores in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the
year on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i) (a)

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees,
provided security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companics,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)
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(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(c)

(d)

(e)

9]

(a)

(b)

(a)

The Company has not

. granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies,
irms,

S, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(jii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Compapy has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies,
ﬁfm§, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
Trequirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

T_hefe were 1o loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, cither
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and

accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services
as prescribed. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added
tax, cess, and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as
income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings or interest thereon
due to any lender during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
ix(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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()

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

6

(2)

(®)

(b)

()

(a)

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
Institution or government or any government authority.

The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report
on clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer
/ further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The company is a private company and is thus not required to establish an Audit
Committee as prescribed under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, as
explained to us, the Company satisfies the conditions for exemption from the
provisions of section 188 prescribed in notification dated June 5, 2015 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and therefore, the provisions of section 188 do not apply
to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xiii) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an
internal audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report under clause 3(xiv)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(&)

(xviii)

(xix)

The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an
internal audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report under clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There is no Core Investment Company as part of the group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs 149.46 Mn in the current year
and amounting to Rs 275.58 Mn in the immediately preceding financial year
respectively,

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due,
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(xx) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in‘relation to Corporate
Social Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requircment
to report on clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associfites LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registratio

er: 101049W/E300004

per S4gjayBachchani

Partner

Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 25400419BMOPQY4156

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 26, 2025
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PICKRR TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Wf’ have ?_Lud_itcd the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Pickrr '1"f_-c:hx1ologi‘f=S
Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Co_mpany’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Intenal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards
on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
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accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance

Note issued by the ICAL

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration

Partner
Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 25400419BMOPQY4156

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 26, 2025



Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

CIN: U74140DL2015PTC418468

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at As at
ASSETS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024%
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets 3 752 1y
Fiianclal assais 4 17.30 4.04
(i) Other financial assets
Total non-current a 2 0.89 202
=3ets 25.75 10.83
Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets L 254 )
(i) Trade receivables
) 62 :
(i) Cash and cash equivalenls oA 43 27 1?; :g
(ili) Other bank balance 5b 2‘70 4-71
(iv) Other financial assets o 138.76 62.25
Current lax assets (net) 57:' 19‘97 6‘40
Other current assets 8 23.22 19.03
Total current assets
233.08 234.15
Total assets 258.83 244.98
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital g 0.13 0.13
lnslmmen.ts entirely equity in nature 9 0.10 0.10
Other equity 10 (18.18) 134,60
Total equity (17.95) 134 83
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 28 13.68 -
Provisions 1M 12.48 7.54
Total non-current liabilities 26.16 7.54
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liabililies 28 343 4.36
(i) Trade payables 12
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; 5.69 2.72
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 165.44 52.95
(iii) Others Financial Liabilities 13 44.90 1832
Other current liabilities 14 12.96 12.15
Provisions 1 18.20 12.11
Total current liabilities 250.62 102.61
Total liabilities 276.78 110:15
Total equity and liabilities 258.83 244.98

Summary of material accounting policies

# Refer Note 39
The accompanying notes are integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S. R Batliboi & Associates LLP
Charlered Accountlants

ICAl Firm Registration No. - 101049W/E300004

A

mbership No. - 400419

Place : Gurugram
Date ; September 26, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Pickrr Technologles Private Limited

aurav Mangla
Director
DIN: 07030189

Place : Gurugram
Date : September 26, 2025

Kumar Tanmay
Director
DIN: 09631572

Place : Gurugram

Dale : September 26, 2025



Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

CIN: UT4140DL2015PTC418468

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(ANl amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year anded

Particulars Notes A
= March 31, 2025 Morch 31, 2048
Continuing Operations
Income 263.58
Revenue from operations 15 o 2: 537
Qther income 16 2.46 268.95
Total income (1) 784,
Expenses pn .
Purchase of traded goods 17 2 54 -
Change in Inventories of traded goods 18 (2'?;11 250.60
Employee benefits expense 19 318. g
Finance costs 20 ﬂgg 10.23
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21 b 262.45
Other expenses 22 645.72 524,10
Total Expenses (1) 972.53
(255.15)
Loss before tax from continuing operations (lli=1-11) (188.07)
Tax expense: -
Current tax 36 - .
Deferred tax 26 -
Total Tax Expense (IV) -
255.15
Loss for the year (V=III-IV) from continuing operations (188.07) ( )
Discontinued Operalions 39 {143.05)
Loss before tax for the year from discontinued operations = _
Tax Expense of discontinued operations (143.05)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations (VI) - ’
Loss for the year (VII=V+VI) (188.07) (398.20)
Other Comprehensive Income: 39
Items that will nol be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: 3.09
(i) Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans 23 (1.39) .
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) (VIII) (1.39) 3.09
Total Comprehensive Loss for the year (net of tax) (IX=VII+VIII) (189.46) (395.11)
Loss per equity share (Face value of Rs.10 each): 24
For Continuing operations
Basic (INR per share) (8,139.43) (11,042.76)
Diluted (INR per share) (8,139.43) (11,042.76)
For Discontinued operations
Basic (INR per share) - (6,191.09)
Diluted (INR per share) . (6,191.09)
Loss per equity share (Face value of Rs.10 each):
Basic (INR per share) (8,139.43) (17,233.85)
(8,139.43) (17,233.85)

Diluted (INR per share)

Summary of material accounting policies

# Refer Nole 39
The accompanying noles are integral pan of inancial statements.

As per our report of even dale
For §. R Batliboi & Assoclates'L)P
Chanered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No, =

pef Sakhjay Bachchani
Pariner
Membership No. - 40

Place : Gurugram
Dale - September 20

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars
Pickrr Technolegles Private Limited

o=
urav Mangla

Director
DIN. Q7030189

Place . Gurugram
Dats : Seplember 26, 2025

ww\\/["“w \

~O
Kun nmay
Diruclar

LIN: 0ga31572

Place - Gurugram
Dale - Seplembar 26, 2029



Pickrr Technologles Private Limited

CIN: UT4140DL2015PTC4 18468

Statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 20258
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise siated)

Particulars

A Operating activities

Loss belore tax
From Continuing Operations

Adjustment to reconcile Loss before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation and amortization expense

Interest Income on bank deposits

Interest Income on Income tax refund

Interest on Security deposits carried at amortised cost

Interest on lease habilities

Loss on disposal of Property, plant and equipment

Liabilites wntten back

Provision for doubtful debls

Provision for doubtiul advances and recoverable

Share Based Paymen! Expense

Operating Loss before working capital changes

Working capital adjustments:

(Increase) in Other financial assets

Decreass/(Increase) in Trade Receivables

Decrease/(Increase) in other current and non-current assets

Increase in Trade Payables

(Decrease)/Increase in Other current liabilities

Increase in Provisions

Increase in other financial liabilties

(Increase] in Inventories

Cash (used in) from operations

Direct taxes paid (net of refund)

Net cash flows used in operating activities (A)

E. Investing activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment including Capital advances

Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment
Interest Income on bank deposits

Investment in Bank deposits (net)

Net cash flows from investing activities (B)

C. Financing activities

Cash Flow from financing activities
Principal paymen! of lease liability

Interest payment of lease liability

Net cash flows from financing activities (C)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

Caomponents of cash and cash equivalents
Cashn hand

Balances with banks- on current accounts

Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 5b)

dad
nded For the yrar en
h:; lh:hv;:r;ozs March 31, 20744
ar i

(186.07)

6.78 10.23
(0.21) (0.31)
(0.23) kbl
(0.14) (0.21)
0.38 0.69

} 029
= (0.24)
(5.16) 723
5.16 027
6,68 69.38
{144.81] (172.43)
(?-2-43, (31.84)
21.28 (9.85)
(4.19) 24.36
115.47 5212
0.81 (10.08)
9.64 12.01
26.57 46.17
(2.54) :
(50.20) (89.54)
(13.34) 77.97
(63.54) (11.57)

(8.03) (0.12)

= (0.19)
0.06 0.24
2.01 (1.87)
(5.96) (1.94)
(4.71) (6.84)
(0.38) (0.69)
(5.09) (7.52)

(74.59) (21.03)
116.86 137.89
42.27 116.86
42.27 116.86
4227 116.86

# Refer Note 39
The accompanying notes are integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S. R Batliboi & Associates LLP
Charlered Accountants

ICAl Fign Registration No. - 101049W/E300004

P

Membership No - 400418

Place : Gurugram
Dale : Seplember 20, 2025

(3

njay Bachchani
er

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Pickrr Technaelagies Private Limited

O\

.afu/'y_‘% @

urav Mangla Kumar Tanmay
Director Directar
DIN. 07030189 DIN: 0ud3 1572
Place  Guiugram Flace  Gurugram

Date © Seplember 26, 2026  Date - September 26, 2025




Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

CIN: UT4140DL2015PTC418468

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts In Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital (Refer Note 9)

Particulars No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid 12,558 0.13
As at April 1, 2023 ' >
Issue of share capital = 1]
As at March 31, 2024 12,558 _-1!
Issue of share capital z
As at March 31, 2025 12,558 0.13
b. Equity component of convertible preference shares (Refer Note 9)
Particulars No. of shares Amount
Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares
As at April 1, 2023 10,548 20
Issue of share capital = =
As at March 31, 2024 10543 b
lssue of share capital - 2
As at March 31, 2025 10548 o
c. Other equity
Other Equity ; Total
Particulars Security Premium | Retalned earning | Comprehensive | contribution from | Capital Reserve
Income holding company
Balance as at April 01, 2023 82943 (1,491.69) 262 .01 f 1‘:;:::]1}
Pursuant lo scheme of demerger s 143.05 (1.22) - 234.10 '393'1?
Loss for the year - (398.17) . - ' : 69‘313]I
Add . Additional contribution fram Holding company (Refer Note 37) - - ¥ 69,38 ) 3-09
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year 5 - 309 - = 4-6
Balance as at March 31, 2024 B20.43 (1,746.81) 4.49 113.39 934.10 134.60
Loss for the year . (188.07) . = - (188.07)
Add - Additional contribution from Holding company (Refer Nole 37) - - - 36.68 7 3‘:-58
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year " - {1.39) = = {1:38}
Balance as at March 31, 2025 82943 (1934.88] 340 150.07 934.10 L18:18))

The accompanying notes are integral pan of inancial slatements,

As per our report of even date

For 5. R Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm }legislramn No. - 101049W R00004

Place : Gurugram
Date : September 26, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

v

aurav Mangla
Director

DIN: 07030189

Place : Gurugram

Date : September 26, 2025

S
\&Mﬁy\“

Kumar.
Director

DIN: 09631572

may

Place * Gurugram
Date - September 26, 2025



Pickrr Technologies Private Limited
CIN: U74140DL2015PTC418468
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1

Corporate Information
Pickrr Technologies Private Limited ('the Com, x i i d under the Registr
i @ ! pany’) was established under the provisions of the companies Act, 2013.The Company was registered u egistration
gor-' ”T‘J“ooumﬁmcusaes dated 9th November, 2015, The Registered office the Company is Khasra No. 360, M.G. Road, Sultanpur, Gadaipur, South West Delhi,
elhi, India, 110030. The_Cnmpany 's engaged in the business of logistics services and other ancillary activities of a similar nature. The financial statemen! were approved
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on Seplember 26, 2025. &

Basis of preparation

ghese standalone I'lna!-'tcial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standards specified “_'nder i 133 of e

so:-nzar!uelfl Act 2013 (‘the Act’), read with of the Companles (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and presentation requirements of Division Il of
chedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule Ill), as applicable lo the standalone financial statements.

T:T,sfe stlzmdalone financial s‘tatements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except certain financial instrument which are measured
atfairvalues, wherever applicable, at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopled in the preparation of these standalone financial statements, These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated,

The standalone ﬁnanc_lallstatemenls are presented in Indian Rupees and all amounts disclosed in the standalone financial statements and notes have been rounded off to
the nearest millions, within two decimals, unless otherwise stated.

Summary of material accounting policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confermity with the principles of Ind AS requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumplions that effect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are
based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the autcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basls. Revisions o accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In particular, information about the significant areas of estimation, uncertainly and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements are disclosed in Note No. 25.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of
the plant and equipment. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their
specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cos! Is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance cosls are recognised in profit and loss as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefils are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on all property plant and equipment are provided on a writlen down value based on the estimated useful life of the asset, which is as follows:

Category of asset Useful Lives (Years)
Office Equipment 5
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Computers 3
Plant and Machinery 10

Leasehold improvements are amortised over life based on lease term.
The management has estimated the usefil lives and residual values of all properly, plant and equipment and adopted useful lives based on management's technical

assessment of their respective economic useful lives. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on the assels purchased during the year is provided on pro rala basis from the date of purchase of the assets, Individual assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are
fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

Current versus Non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is meeting the following

conditions, All other assets are classified as non-current.

i) Expected to be realised or intended Lo be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) It is due to be seltled within twelve menths afler the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Deferred lax assels and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operaling cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and lheir realisation in cash and cash equivalents, The Company has identified twelve
months as its operaling cycle.




Pickrr Technelogies Private Limited
CIN: U?-l."bDLZ'O‘lSPTC-USdBS

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

e  Revenue recognition
The Company's revenue primaril
shipping, fulfilment and CONversi
advanced technology plays
technology

y stems from ils innovalive merchant solutions deeply rooted in culling-edge technology. These merchant solutions revolve around
on technology, serving as a bridge connecting retailers, carriers, and consumers on both national and international fronts. The Company's
syl > a pivotal role N powering shipping and fulfillment for SMEs, D2C relailers, and social commerce sellers, while alsa affering a comprehensive
s or refailers to seamlessly integrate their shopping websites or their other channels for efficient inventory and order management.

ithir j c ot
:nd \I;]The rgg‘m of merchant solutions, the Company generates revenue through a range of technology-driven services. This includes subscription charges, platform fees
o Ta—a ed ces, as well as revenue derived from shipping and logistics solutions, payment management, and state-of-the-art fulfillment selutions. The company’s
prncipal method of charging its revenue is on a pay-for-use model i, the company menetises ils producls or services on a per-transaction basis. These technology-driven

f:‘:x: are strategically designed to empower and optimize merchants' use of the tech-based platform, ultimately constituting a significant portion of the Company's overall

amgemenls with merchants dlca nol provide the merchants with the right to take possession of the software supporting the Company's hosting platform at any time and are
. ore accounted for as service contracts, The Company recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised services to its customers in an amount that reflects the

consideration to which the Company ex i i | i
; " pects to be entitled in exchange for steps:
-ldentity the contract with a customer . SRR Y e halow a

-ldentify the performance obligations in the contract
-Determine the transaction price.
*Allocate the transaction price and

~Recognize revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company follows the guidance provided in IND AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, for determining whether the Company is the principal or an agent in
amangements with customers that involve another party that contributes to providing a specified service 1o a customer. In these instances, the Company delermines whether

it has promised to provide the specified service itself (as principal) or to arrange for the specified service to be provided by another party (as an agent). This determination
depends on the facts and circumstances of each arrangement,

GST collected from merchants and remitted to government authorilies are excluded from revenue.

The Company determines the price for each performance obligation based on observable standalone selling prices, Standalone selling prices are determined considering
pricing objectives, market conditions, discounting practices, transaclion size, customer demographics, geography, price lists, and go-to-market strategy. This determination
involves-management consultation and approval. Changes in go-to-market strategies may lead lo adjustiments in standalone selling prices. Payment is generally recejved
upon invoicing. with payment terms varying by contract type but usually requiring payment within 30 days of the invoice date. The company also allows its merchants to
maintain advances. The conlracts do not involve significant financing companents when there are timing differences between revenue recognition, invoicing, and payment.

f Retirement and other employee benefits
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and national pension scheme (NPS) is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the
conlribution payable to the provident fund/NPS, The Cempany recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme/NPS scheme as an expense, when an
employee renders the relaled service. If the contribution payable 1o the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the
deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheetl date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead 1o, for example, a reduction in future
payment or a cash refund,

Gratuit

Graluityyliabillty is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit methoed made at the end of each financial
year, Remeasurements, comprising of acluarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in nel interest on the net defined benefit liability are recognised immediately
in the balance sheel with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income (OCI) in the year in which they occur. Remeasurements
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,

Pas! service costs are recognised in profit and loss on the earlier of:
i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
ii) The date thal the Company recognises relaled restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit cbligation
as an expense in the statement of profit and loss: .
i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

ii) Net inlerest expense

Leave encashment

Accumulated leave, which is expected 1o be ulilized within the next 12 months, is treated as shori-term employee benefi. The Company measures the expected cost of
such absences as the addilional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitiement that has accumulated at the reporting date, The Company recognizes
expecled cost of short-lerm employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

The Company also operales a leave encashmenl plan. The Company Wreats accumulated leave expected lo be carmed lorward beyond twelve monlhs, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-lerm compensaled absences are provided for based on the actuanial valuation using the projected unit credit
melhod al the reporting date. Acluanial gainsflosses are immedialely taken 1o the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are prasented as current
liabilities in Ihe balance sheel il lhe enlily does not have an unconditional nght lo defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reparting date,

Short4erm obligations

Liabilies for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits that are expecled o be settied whally within 12 months after the end of the period in which the amployees
rendear Ihe related service are recognized in respect of employee service uplo the end of the reporting pened and are measured al the amount aapected lo ba paid when tha
liabilies are setled. The liabililies are presenled as current employee benefil obligalions in the balance sheel




Pickir Technologies Private Limited
CIN: U74140DL2015PTC418468

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

9 Leases

ﬁwllr:::;:lni\::l::mnln.f‘ll:\d1 AS 116, the _{‘nmpnny has adopted modified relrospective approach and has recognised Right of use Ass
ol Hhe present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate

al and lease Nakility on initial

Tha Company assesses ol contract inception whether a contract Is, of contains, a lease. That s, if the contract canveys the right to cantrof the use of an identified asset for

a perod of time in exchange for consideration,

Company as a lessee
E: “1“?:‘ Ty apphes a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Campany racoqnises
=& habilites to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right lo use the underlying assels.

i) Right of use assets
2; :‘;:dp::;or:c?s:;s:: rnaghwi-ulse assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e.. the date the underlying asset is ava
e mm.des-;ﬁ.e ;mo 5m c:s.:mu atTd dfra?recmﬂon and accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
-l - : unt of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the comme
¢ receved. Right-of-use assels are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
of the leased assel translers to the Company al the end of the lease ferm or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation s calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset |,
ii) Lease habilities
Al the commenc_ement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease lerm. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate. and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the Gpliot t5 termnete. /arletile fowss
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expens;es (unless they are incumed to produce inventaries) in PEAR ek Sty
condition that triggers the payment occurs,
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement dale because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease fiabilities is increased ta reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carmying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g.. changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used o determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

ilable for use). Right-of-use assets are
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
ncement date less any lease
“If ownership

iil) Shon-term leases
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption 1o its properties (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
cate and do not contain a purchase option), Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term

h  Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit and loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and
atributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity and compulsorily convertible preference shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating
diluted ezrnings per share, the net profit and loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive polential equity shares.

I Income taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax
Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Slandards ("ICDS") enacted in India by using lax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit and loss (either In other comprehensive income or in
equity). Current tax terns are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management considers whether it is probable that a
taxation authority will accepl an uncertain tax treatmenl. The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each unceriain tax treatment by using either most likely
method or expecled value method, depending on which method predicts better resclution of the treatment. Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are
presented in the balance sheet after off-setlling advance lax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant lax paying units

intends o sellle the assel and hability on a net basis.

Deferred taxes
Deferred tax is provided using Lhe liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes at the reporting date, Deferred lax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
1) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transacton that is nol a business combination and, al the time of the

transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit and loss,

1) In respect of taxable lemporary differences associated with invesiments in subsidiaries and associates, when the Lming of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable thal the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable fulure.

Deferred tax assels are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assels are
recognised Lo the extent Lthal it is probable thal taxable profit will be available against which the deductible lemporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except

i) When the deferred tax assel relaung 1o the deduclible temporary difference arises from the initial recogniion of an assel cr hiability in @ ransaction thal Is not a business

combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit and loss
i) In respect of deductible lemporary differences associaled with investments in subsidianes and associates, deferred lax assels are recognised only Lo the axtant that itis
protable that the lemporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available againsl which the temporary differences can be ulilized,

The carrying amount of daferred tax assels is reviewed al each reporting date and reduced 1o the extent thal it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
avallable 1o allow all or parl of the deferred tax asset o be utilised. Unrecognised deferred Lax assels are re-assessed at each reparting date and are recagnised ta the
exten! hat il has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assel 1o be recovered.

Delened lar assels and habllilies are measured al the tax rates thal are expecled 10 apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability Is seltled, based on tax rates
{and lax laws) Ihal have bieen enacled or substantively enacled at the reporting date.




Pickrr Technelogies Private Limited
CIN: UT4140DL2015PTC418468
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)
in equity). Deferred lax items

Deferred lax relating to items recognised outside profil and loss is recognised oulside profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income of

are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity,
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to sel off current tax assets against current ax tabtiien-Erst e Safame o
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

j Foreign currency transactions i
ltems included in 'lhe Financial Statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operales (“."e fnctioral curency).
The Company's Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (‘the functional currency’) which is also the Company's functional and presentation currency.

r recognition. However, for practical

Transactions and balances
ion first qualifies fo \ |
bbubal d liabilities denominated in

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency spol rales al the date the transact
reasons, the company uses an average rale if the average approximates the exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Monetary assels an
foreign currencies are translated al the functional currency spol rales of exchange at the reporting date.

the exception of the following:

1s when the foreign operation is'a branch), such exchange

ss on disposal of the net investment.

Exchange dil“le_rences arising on settlement or translation of menetary items are recognised in profit and loss with
|]_In the financial statements that include the foreign operation and the reporting entity (e.g., financial statemen
g»[femnces are recognised initially in OCI. These exchange differences are reclassified from equity to profit and lo
ii) Tax charges and credits altributable 1o exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCI,

using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. .N?n‘
{ the date when the fair value is delermined. The gain or loss arising
in or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
respectively).

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates a
crl translation of non-monetary ilems measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the ga
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,

k Share based payments
Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions). The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an
appropriate valuation model.

Thal cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves In equity, over the year in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting year has expired and the Company's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and
loss expense or credit for a year represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that year and is recognised in employee

benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
mel is assessed as part of the Company's best eslimate of the number of equity instruments that will ulimately vest. Market perfformance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions altached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Nonvesting
conditions are reflecled in the fair value of an award and lead lo an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a
market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespeclive of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

imum expense recognised is the expense had the lerms had not been modified, if the original terms of the

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the mini
fication that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial

award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any moedi
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

mployee shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity, except to the extent that the payment exceeds the fair value of

For cancelled options, the payment made to the e
{ the cancellation date. Any such excess from the fair value of equity instrument shall be recognised as an expense.

the equity instruments of the Company, measured a

The dilutive effect of outstanding optians is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

| Segment Reporting
In accordance with Ind AS 108, Segment Reporling, Segments are identified based on the manner in which the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM') decides about
resource allocation and reviews performance. Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be

allocaled on a reasonable basis.

m Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments (recorded at fair value through P&L or OCI) al fair value al each balance sheel dalte.
to sell an asset or paid o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market parlicipants at the measurement date.

Falir value Is the price that would be received
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption Lhat the transaction to sell the assel or transfer the liability takes place either:

i) In the principal market for the assel or liability, or
ii) In the absence of a principal markel, in the mosl advantageous market for the asset or liability The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the

Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
markel participants act in their economic best Interest.

A fair value measurement of @ non-financial asset lakes into account a markel participant’s abilily to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in ils highesl and best use.
The Company uses valuation lechniques thal are appropriale in the circumslances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of

relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based

on the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whale:

i_} Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in aclive markets for identical assels or liabilities.
il) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
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iii) Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement IS unobservable.

r transfers have occurred between levels in

elermines whelhcl as a whole) at the end of each reparting

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company d g
re

the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measu

period.

nal valuers is decided on the basis of nature of transaction and complexity
ssional standards are maintained.

re required lo be remeasured of re-assessed as per the
he information in the valuation com putation
| sources lo determine whether the change

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Invelvement of exter
involved. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether profe

values of assels and liabilities which a >
valuation by agreeing !
d with relevant externa

At each reporling dale, the finance team analyses the movements in the
Company's accounting policies, For this analysis, the team verifies the major inpuls applied in the latest
1o contracts and other relevant documents. A change in fair value of assels and liabilities is also compare
is reasonable.

re, characteristics and risks of the asset or

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the natu

liability and the leve! of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given In the relevant notes.

n Financial Instruments .
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial assel of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
i) Financial assets
The Company classified its financial assets in the following measurement categories :-
- Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or

= Those measured at amortized cost

through profit & loss)

at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly
d to or deducted from the fair value of the

ts at fair value through profit or loss are

Initial recognition and measurement :

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value excepl for Trade receivables wh
atiributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets al
financial assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs direclly attributable to

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

ich are initially measured
fair value through profit or loss) are adde
the acquisition of financial asse

Subsequent measurement ;
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:

(i) At amortized cost
(i) At fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")
(iii) At fair value through other comprehensive income {*FVTOCI")- Equity Instruments

At amortized cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold ts for collecting conlractual cash flows and
the asset's contractusl cash flows represent Sole Payment of Principal and Interest ("SPPI") This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement,
such financial assets are subsequently measured al amortized cost using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly
discount the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate o the gross carrying amount of financial
assets. When calculating the EIR the Company estimate the expecled cash flow by considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments. The EIR amortization Is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other

receivables,

At FVTOCI

A financial assete is subsequently measured at FVTOCH if it is held within a business modal whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified date lo cash flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding. All equity
investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income all subsequent
changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognilion and is irrevocabla. If the
Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at EVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI, There 1s no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to profil and loss, even on sale of investment. However, Lhe Company may lransfer the cumulative gain or loss within equily. Equity
instruments included within the FVYTPL calegory are measured al fair value with all changes recognized in the Profit and loss.

At FVTPL
Any financial asset which does not meel the crilena for amortized cost or FVTOC!, is classified as at FVTPL. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingant

consideralion recognized by an acquirer in a business combinalion o which Ind AS .. applies are classifled as FVTPL.

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial assel when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assel expire or it ransfers the financial asset and the transfer

qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109,
Impairment of financial assels
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expecled credil losses ("ECL") model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial

assel and credil risk exposure
- Financial assels measured al amortized cost,
= Financial assets measured af falr value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI),

\Cr, Lt S /A
Wram 4

-




Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

CIN: UT4140DL2015PTC418468

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

The Company tollows *simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Under

the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance ba_sed on lifetime ECI;:na:ni::xb:?i::;;rllal
revenue recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allawance en the portfolio of trade receivables, Sl pu:}ws d on I'orw;rd look _on
the historically observed default rates over the expected life of various categories of trade recelvables and these are updated and Cha?ged :I!s:] there has b i
estimates at every reporting date. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assels and risk exposure, the Company determines w 2 ‘;fm 1oas: K :en .E;
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairm T ,a sjw \;er, i
credit nsk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there s no g HATcAnt
increase in creditrisk since initial recognition, then the Company reverts lo recognizing impairment loss allowance based on .12 months ECL.

(if) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement i

Financial liabilities are classified al initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and pay?nles. pet .Of 3/ altnzutable
transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include loans and borrowings including bank overdraft, trade payable, trade deposits, retention money and other
payables. The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Trade Payables
These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designal
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in t i
held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognilion at fair value through profit or loss are el
such at the initial date of recognition, and enly if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

ed upon initial recognition as at fair value
he near lerm. Gains or losses on liabilities

Loans and borrowings .

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrawings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of
profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or

cancelled or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are cffset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabillties if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

o Impairment of non-financial assets
The company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for

an asset is required, the company estimates the asset's recoverable amounl. An assel's recoverable amount is the higher of an assel's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered

impaired and is written down o its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the eslimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific lo the asset. In delermining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transaclions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded

companies or other available fair value indicators.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the company's CGUs to which the
individual assets are allocaled, These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of ten years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rale is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the tenth year. To estimale cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgels/torecasts, the company
extrapolales cash flow projections in the budgel using a sleady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this
growth rate does nol exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which

the assel is used.
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assels excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporling dale 1o determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no
longer exist or have decreased. If such indicalion exists, the company eslimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does nol exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been delermined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal s recognised in the statement of
profit and loss unless the assel is carried al a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is reated as a revaluation increase.

&

P o
dram "ﬂ

el L




Pickrr Technologies Private Limited
CIN: UT4140DL2015PTC4184G68

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwlse stated)

p Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balance

2.2

2.3

| maturity of three months or less, which are

ihan DHgV f cash and short-lerm deposits, as

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short lerm deposits Wi -
h equlvalents consisl ©

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, For the purpose of the stalement of cash flows, cash and cas
defined above,

Provisions and contingent liabilities

i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
embodying economic benefits will be required fo setlle the obligation and a reliable eslimate can be made 0
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

it is probable that an outflow of resources

t and :
pasbaven ligation, The expense relating to a

f the amount of the ob

; i ecific to the liability,
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the Asks R ¥
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due 1o the passage of lime is recognised as a finance cosl.

ii) Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed
more uncertain fulure events not wholly within the control of the company, or is a present obligation that arises from pas
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or a reliable
made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed and not recognised.

ence Of NON-OCCUrrence of one are
recognised because either itis not
obligation cannol be

only by the occurr
1 event but is not
estimate of the amount of the

Discontinued operation

Pasccnunued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amoun
in the statement of profit and loss. Additional disclosures are provided in Note 39. All other notes to the financ
operations, unless otherwise mentioned.

fter tax from discontinued operations

t as profit or loss a it
ounts for conlinuing

jal statements mainly include am

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value (nel of allowances) after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered

necessary, which is valued al net realizable value.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventorles less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
Stiock-in-trade cost (nel of tax credits wherever applicable) are determined on a First In First Out(FIFO) basis.

New and amended standards

The company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2024. The com
early adopted any standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

pany has naot

(i) Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts
The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide notification dated 12 August 2024, under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which Is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024.

Ind AS 117 Insurance Conlracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure.
Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 117 applies to all types of insurance contracts, regardiess of the type of entities that issue them as well as to
cerlain guarantees and financial instruments with discrelionary participation features; a few scope exceptions will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model,

supplemented by:

- A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)
- A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts
The application of Ind AS 117 has no impact on the company's financial slatements.

(ii) Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liabilityin a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in a
Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, lo ensure the seller-lessee
does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.

The amendmenl is eflective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered
Amendments to Ind AS issued but not yet effective

MCA vide notificalion no. G.S.R. 291(E) dated May 7, 2025 has Issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2025 which amends following Ind
AS (as applicable 1o the Group):

Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rales
Ind AS 101 - First-ime Adoplion of Indian Accounling Standards
The amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2025,

The amendment have no impacl on the company's financial slatements.
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MCA vide notification no. G.S.R. 549(E) dated August 13, 2025 has issued the Companies (Indian Accouning Standards) Second Amend ,
following Ind AS (as applicable to the company):

(1) Amendments 1o Ind AS 7 and Ind AS 107 - Supplier Finance Arrangements . Disclosures clarifying the characteristics of
On August 13, 2025, the MCA issued amendments to Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and Ind AS 107 Financial Inslfuments. |s; e are intanded 1o sssist tisers of
supplier finance arrangements and require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure reguirements in the amen meto liquidity risk. The amendment s
financial statements in understanding the effects of supplier finance amangements on an entity's liabilities, cash flows and exposure

effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2025.

The amendment has no impact on the company's financial statements.

(i) Amendments to Ind AS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Nen-current S ‘fvina liabilities as current or non-current. The
On August 18, 2025, the MCA issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of Ind AS 1 to specify the requirements for classifying

amendments clarify:

* What is meant by a right to defer settlement

* That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

= That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right o . {its classification

* That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of a llabliliy not :n'!pac i current and the entity’s right to defer
In addition, a requirement has been introduced to require disclosure when a liability arising from a loan agreement is classified as non

settlement is conlingent on compliance with future covenants within twelve manths.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2025.

The amendment has no impact on the company’s financial statements.

<<This space has been intentionally left blank>>
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4

Right-of-use assets (Refer note 28)

Gross Block

Balance as at April 01, 2023
Additions

Deletions

Balance as at March 31, 2024
Additions

Deletions

Balance as at March 31, 2025

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 01, 2023
Depreclation expense
Deletions

Balance as at March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense
Deletions

Balance as at March 31, 2025

Carrying amount

Balance as at April 01, 2023
Balance as at March 31, 2024
Balance as at March 31, 2025

<<This space has been intentionally left blank=>>

Total

43.69

(23.27)

20.42
17.86
(20.42)

17.86

24.93
11.45
(20.00)

16.38
4.60
(20.42)

0.56

18.76

4.04

17.30




Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

CIN: UT4140DL2015PTC418468

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

5 Financial assets

Sa Trade receivables

Particulars

March 31,2025

As at

As at

March 31, 2024

Trade receivables

Break-up of Trade Receivables:

3.62 24.90
3.62 24.90
—

As at As at
s i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 3.62 24.90
Trade receivables - credit Impaired 20.31 2547
2393 50,37

Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade receivables - credit impaired (20.31) (25.47)
Total Trade Receivables 3.62 24.30
Trade Receivables ageing schedule:
As at March 31, 2025

Outstanding for following periods from transaction date

Particulars Lessthan Six | 6 months -1 | 1-2 years 2-3years | More than 3 years Tatal
> months year

Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 362 = n : - 3.62
Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 2 20.31 = 4 - 20.31
Total 3.62 20.31 - - - 23.93 |

—
As at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from transaction date

Particulars Less than Six | & months -1 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total
months year
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 24.90 = - - = 24.90
Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired N 2547 z 2 - 2547
[Total 24.90 25.47 = - - 50.37
Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Balances at the beginning of the year 25.47 250.21
Additions during the year - 7.23
Write off - (187.79)
Written back (5.16)
Transferred pursuant to scheme of demerger (Refer Note 39) - (44.18)
Balances at the end of the year 20.31 25.47

Notes:

No trade or cther receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or Jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other recejvable

are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a pariner, a director or a member.

For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, Refer Note 31.
1.Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
2.Refer Nole 5d for unbilled receivables

5b Cash and cash equivalents
Details of cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Balances with banks

— On current accounts

— On current accounts for Amount payable, collected on behalf of the customers
Total

For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

2353 7237
18.74 44.49
42.27 116.86

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Balances with banks:

= On current accounts

= On current accounts for Amount payable, collected on behalf of the customers
Total

23.53 7237
18.74 44.49
42.27 116.86
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S5c¢ Other bank balance

5d

Particulars

- Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months

Other financial assets

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

As at
As al
1, 2025 March 31, 2024
March 3 s -
2.70 471
As at

As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Particulars
Non Current
Secunty deposits 0.83 5.02
Unsecured, considered good
— 083 502
Total Other Non-current financial assets = S
Current
(a) Security deposits 0.50 =
Unsecured, considered good 5.16 -
Unsecured, considered doubtful 5.16) =
Less: Provision for Doubtful Recoverables "_'_'_____(Eﬁ_ =
(b) Interest Receivable 0.21 0.07
Interest accrued on deposits with banks
0.21 0.07
E)nContrrac;l Asiel;—rU;binez Revenue 138.05 62.18
secured, considered gool D 6218
138.76 62.25
Inventories (At lower of Cost or Net realisable value) AT As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
2.54 =
Traded goods (Stock-in-trade
raded go ( i ) = =
Current tax assets (net) ot As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
19.97 6.40
Advance Income Tax i}
Provision for Income Tax e o
Total Current Tax Assets
Non Current 19.97 6.40
Current
Other current assets
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current
Prepaid Expenses
- Unsecured, considered good 0.87 1.24
0.87 1.24
Advance to Suppliers
Unsecured, considered good 9.97 2.02
Unsecured, considered doubtiul 0.27 0.27
Less: Provision for Doubtful Recoverables {0.27) (0.27)
9.97 2.02
Advance to Employee
-Unsecured, considered good 2,63 0.38
2,63 0.38
Balances with statutory / government authorities:
-Unsecured, considered good 9.75 15.39
-Unsecured, considered doubtful = .
9.75 15.39
Total 23,22 19.03
Non Current - -
23.22 19.03

Current
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@

9

Equity share capital

Details of share capital is as follows:

Particulars

Authorised shares
Equity Shares
30,000 (March 31,

90,000

Equity Shares

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
12,558 (March 31, 2024: 12,558) Equity Shares of INR 10 each

Instruments Entirely Equity in Nature
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares
3,290 (March 31, 2024: 3,290) 0.01%
5,341 (March 31, 2024: 5.341) 0.01%
1,817 (March 31, 2024: 1,917) 0.1%

Total

Reconciliation of issued and subscribed share capital:

Reconciliation of Issued, subscribed and fully paid up as at yearend :

Equity shares

As at March 31, 2023 {Equity shares of INR 10 each)
Increase during the year

As at March 31, 2024 (Equity shares of INR 10 each)
Increase during the year

As at March 31, 2025 (Equity shares of INR 10 each)

3,290 (March 31, 2024: 3,290) 0.01% Seed Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each

As at March 31, 2023
Issued during the year
As at March 31, 2024
Issued during the year
As at March 31, 2025

As at

As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

2024: 30,000) Equily Shares of INR 10 each
Instruments Entirely Equity in Nature

(March 31, 2024: 90,000) of Compulsorily convertible preference shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each

See_d Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each
Series A (;.‘ompulsnriry Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each
ompulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each

5,341 (March 31, 2024: 5,341) 0.01% Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each

As at March 31, 2023
Issued during the year
As at March 31, 2024
Issued during the year
As at March 31, 2025

1,917 (March 31, 2024: 1,917) 0.1% Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares {CCPS) of INR 10 each

As at March 31, 2023
Issued during the year
As at March 31, 2024
Issued during the year
As at March 31, 2025

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

0.30 0.30
0.90 0.90
1.20 1.20
0.13 0.13
(A) 0.13 0.13
0.03 0.03
0.05 0.05
0.02 0.02
0.10 0.10
B
I‘.A““;) 0.23 0.23
Number Amount
12,558 0.13
12,558 0.13
12,558 0.13
CCPS
Number Amount
3,290 0.03
3,290 0.03
3,290 0.03
5,341 0.05
5,341 0.05
5,341 0.05
1,917 0.02
1,917 0.02
1,917 0.02

Class & Name of Shareholder

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Equity shares
Mr, Gaurav Mangla
Mr. Ankit Kaushik

Shiprockel Limited (Formerly known as Shiprockel Private Limited and Bigfoot Retail
Solutions Private Limied) (along with nominees)

Number % of holding Number % of holding
- 0.00% arg 3.02%
. 0.00% 379 3.02%
12,558 100.00% 11,800 93.96%

12,558 100.00% 12,558 100.00%
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Class & Name of Shareholder Ao tWarch 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
, | Number % of holding
Number %, of holding

Shl?rockct Limited (Formerly known as Shiprocket Private Limited and Bigfoot
Retail Solutions Private Limited)

0.01% Seed Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares a.2a0 5i15% 3,290 31.19%
(CCPS) of INR 10 each ;
2,
0.01% Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares 5.341 50.64% 5,341 50.64%
(CCPS) of INR 10 each
0.1% Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) of 1917 18.17% 1,917 18.17%
INR 10 each i
10,548 100.00% 10,548 100.00%
d. Shares held by Holding Company
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 _
Number %, of holding Number % of holding

Shi?rocketA Limited (Formerly known as Shiprocket Private Limited and Bigfoot
Retail Sclutions Private Limited) (along with nominees)
11,800 93.86%

12,557 (March 31, 2024: 11,800) Equily Shares of INR 10 each 12,558 100.00%
3,290 (March 31, 2024: 3,200) 0.01% Seed Compulsorlly 3,200 31.19% 3290 3119%
Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each
5,341 _(Marcn 31, 2024: 5,341) 0.01% Series A Compulsorily 5,341 50.64% 5,341 50.64%
Converlible Preference shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each
1,917 (March 31, 2024; 1,917) 0.1% Compulscrily Convertible 1,917 18.17% 1,917 18.17%
Preference shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each
e. Details of shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2025
Promoter Name No. of shares althe Change during the  No. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during
beginning of the year year end of the year the year
Shiprocket Limited (Formerly known as Shiprocket Private 11,800 758 12,558 100.00% 6.42%
Limited and Bigfoot Retail Sclutions Private Limited) (along with
nominees) (Equity share of INR 10 each)
Gauray Mangla (Equily share of INR 10 each) 379 (379) - 0.00% -100.00%
Ankit Kaushik (Equity share of INR 10 each) 379 (379) s 0.00% -100.00%
Total 12,558 g - 12,558 100.00%
Promoter Name No. of shares atthe Change during the No, of shares atthe % of Total Shares % change during
beginning of the year year end of the year the year
Shiprocket Limited (Formerly known as Shiprocket Private
Limited and Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited) (CCPS of
INR 10 each)
3,290 (March 31, 2024: 3,290) 0.01% Seed Compulsorily 3,290 - 3,290 31.19% -
Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each
5,341 (March 31, 2024: 5,341) 0.01% Series A Compulsorily 5,341 - 5341 50.64% -
Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each
1,917 (March 31, 2024: 1,917) 0.1% Compulserily Convertible 1,917 - 1.917 18.17% .
Preference shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each
Total 1,917 - 1,917 100.00% -
As at March 31, 2024
Promoter Name No. of shares atthe Change during the No. of shares atthe % of Total Shares % change during
beginning of the year year end of the year the year
Shiprocket Limited (Formerly known as Shiprocket Private 10,284 1,516 11,800 93.96% 14.74%
Limited and Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited) (Equity
share of INR 10 each)
Gaurav Mangla (Equity share of INR 10 each) 758 (379) arg 3.02% -50.00%
Ankil Kaushik (Equity share of INR 10 each) 758 (379) 379 3.02% -50.00%
Rhitiman Majumder (Equity share of INR 10 each) 758 (758) - 0.00% .100.00%
Total 12,558 - 12,558 100.00%
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(All amounts In Rs. Millions, unless otherwlse stated)
I S

e
44 of Total Shares % change during

Promoter Name No. of shares al the  Ghange during the  No, of ahares at the the year
beginning of the year year and of tha year
Shiprocket Limited (Formeny khown as Shiprockel Private
Limited and Bigfool Retal Sohtions Private Limited) (CCPS of
INR 10 each)
3.290 (March 31, 2024 3,290) 0.01% Seed Compulsorily 3,290 o 329 e -
Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each
5,341 (March 31, 2024. 5,341) 0.01% Series A Compulsarlly 5,341 - Sad e '
Convertible Preferance shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each
" 7]
1.917 (March 31, 2024 1,917) 0.1% Compulsorily Convertible 1917 ] 1817 B
Preterence shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each
Total 10.548 . 10,548 100.00% -

| interest, the above

1 ficial
As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders! members and other declarations received from sharehalders regarding bene!
shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares
S - : g . . . ken by the company, ne
For the year al which the balance sheet is prepared, no transaction pertaining to allotment of shares without payment being received in cash was underta 5 i
bonus shares have been issued and no shares have been bought back by the compary.

1.  Terms/ rights attached to Equity shares
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share, Each shareholder is efigible for one vote per share held.

Terms/ rights attached to Preference Shares
(i) 0.1% Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares {CCPS) of INR 10 each:
C : ) CPS shall be

CCPS shall be non-participatory, compulsorily and fully convertible preference share and will have a par value of Rs. 10/~ (Indian Rupees Ten only) e??:hu‘a::%gps shall be entitled
entitied to 2 dividend rate of 0.1% per annum of the face value of each CCPS held subject to the declaration by the Board of Directors. The holders o
to voling rights in accordance with applicable Laws.

- ) i rted into
Each CCPS shall be converted into 1 (One) equity share upon receipt of conversion notice from the holder. If no conversion notice Is received tr:)n autnm:ldm"il*):] :::::r 3 e:rf-er
equity shares, upon the completion of the tenth anniversary (10 years) from the date of issue of CCPS, or in the event of listing pursuant to an [PO approved,

: e huti hall be

CCPS shall rank senior to the Equity Shares of the Company in all respects including in relation to interest. dividends, liquidation and other d's“'_b”rj'sz‘ Trl‘: :G‘dI:;Isd:rs of Equity
entitied to be paid and otherwise receive distributions out of the Liquidation Proceeds, on a pari passu basis and prior to any payment or other distribution o any
Shares other than held by Lead investars. Also, CCPS will be paid after Seed CCPS.

(ii) 0.01% Seed Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each: )

h. The Seed
Seed CCPS are nen-cumulative, non-participative, compulsorily and fully convertible preference shares and have a par value of Rs. 10/- {ncien Rupce: ;:G on(l;}l::csmd CC:’;
CCPS are entitled (o a dividend rate of 0.01% per annum of the face value of each CCPS held subject to the declaration by the Board of Directors. ii'; 3 Bl:‘e eranpicabis
is entitled to voling rights equivalent to the number of equity shares which are issuable upon conversion of all series Seed CCPS into Equity Shares ed on

Seed Conversion Price,
Each Seed CCPS may be converled into 1 (One) equily share al any time al the option of the holder of Seed CCPS, Subject to compliance with Laws, ea

automalically be converted into Equity Shares upon the earlier of:
(i) ene day prior to the expiry of 20 (Iwenty) years from the date of its issuance; or )
(ii) in connection with an IPO (or any subsequent IPO), prior to the filing of a prospectus (or equivalent document, by whatever name called) by the Company with the competent

authority or such later date as may be permitled under Law.
The holders shall be entitied to be paid and otherwise receive distributions out of the Liquidation Proceeds, prior to any payment or other distribution to any holders of Equity
Shares. Also, Seed CCPS will be paid after Series A CCPS.

ch Seed CCPS shall

iil) 0.01% Series A Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (CCPS) of INR 10 each: .
(Se}nas A:’_‘,GPS are non-czmulahve. non-participative, compulsorily and fully convertible preference shares and have a par value of Rs. 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) each. The

. P i {aration by the Board of Directors. Each holder of the Series A
CCPS are entitled 1o a dividend rate of 0.01% per annum of the face value of each CF.‘.PS held subject to the decl :
CCPS is entitied lo voling rights equivalent Lo the number of equity shares which are issuable upon conversion of all Series A CCPS into Equity Shares based on the then

applicable Senes A Conversion Price.
Ezch Senes A CCPS may be converted inlo 1 (One) equity share al any time at the option of the majority shareholder. Subject to compliance with Laws, each Series A CCPS shall
sutomatically be converted inlo Equity Shares upon the earlier of:

1) one day prior to the expiry of 20 (twenty) years from the date of its issuance, or .
E“:l) in wm)\;‘:tmn with an IPO (or any subsequent IPO), prior Lo the filing of a prospectus (or equivalent document, by whalever name called) by the Company with Ihe competant

authority or such laler dale as may be permitted under Law,
The holders shall be entitied 1o be pald and olherwise receive distributions out of the Liquidation Proceeds, prior to any payment or other distribution 1o any halders of Equity Shares
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10

10 (a)

10 (b)

10 (c)

10 (d)

Other equity

a, Retained earnings

b. Securilies premium

c. Equity contribution from holding company
d. Capital reserve

Retained earnings

As at March 31, 2023
Add: Loss for the year
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year
As at March 31, 2024
Add: Loss for the year
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year
As at March 31, 2025

Securities Premium

As at March 31, 2023

Add: Premium on shares issued during the year
As at March 31, 2024

Add: Premium on shares issued during the year
As at March 31, 2025

Equity contribution from holding company
As at March 31, 2023

Add: additional contribution during the year (refer note 37)

As at March 31, 2024

Add: additional contribution during the year (refer note 37)

As at March 31, 2025

Capital reserve on account of Demerger
As at March 31, 2023 (Refer note 39)
Add: Increase / (decrease) during the year
As at March 31, 2024

Add: Increase / (decrease) during the year
As at March 31, 2025

Note:
Nature and purpose of Reserves

Securities Premium

As at

t
ety March 31, 2024

March 31, 2025

(1,931.78) (1,742.32)
829.43 829.43

150.07 113.39
934.10 934.10

(18,18) 134.60

Amoaounts

(1,489.04)
(255.15)
1.87
(1,742.32)
(188.07)
(1.39)
(1,931.78)

Amounts
829.43

829.43

829.43

Amounts

44.01
69.38

113.39
36.68

150.07

Amounts

897.48
36.62

934.10

934.10

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares, The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits/(less) that the Company has eamed/incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid
to shareholders. Retained eamings include re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit

and Loss.

Equity contributien from holding company

The reserves pertains to the Employee Stock Options granted to the Company's employees by the helding company

Capital reserve

The reserves represents the reserve created on account of composite scheme of arran
Company”) and Shiprockel Limited (Formerly known as Shiprocket Privale Limited and

demerger,

gements belween Pickrr Technologies Private Limited (“Transferor
Bigfoot Retail Solulions Private Limited) ("Transferee Company”) i.e.
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11

12

14

Provisions

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non-current

Provision for Gratuity (Refer nole 27)
Provision for compensaled absences
Total

Current

Provision for Gratuity (Refer nate 27)
Provision for compensaled absences
Total

Total (a+b)

Non- current
Current

Trade payables

12,48 7.54
12.48 7.54
1.82 1.62
16.38 10.49
18.20 12.11
30.68 19.65
12.48 7.54
18.20 1211

Particulars As at S
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note 26) 5.69 272

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 18544 a4.85
Total 171.13 55.67
As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from transaction date Total
= _ i Not due* Less than 1 year [1.2 yeas 2.3 years More than 3 years
(i) Tatal cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and - 5,69 . o
small enterprises I
(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 86.77 78.67 - 183.94
micro enlerprises and small enterprises
Total B6.77 5436 - 171.13
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from transaction date Total

Not due* Less than 1 year [1-2 yeas 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - 2.72 =
small enterprises 272
(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 3283 2012 =
micro enterprises and small enterprises 52.95
Total 32.83 22.84 = S5.67
* This amount pertains to accrued expenses for the respective year.
Other Financial Liabilities
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Other Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost

Current

- Amount payable, collected on behall of the customers

b) Employee benefil payable

¢} Payable to related parties

Total Other Current financial liabilities

Other current liabilities

11.81 9.20
11.81 9.20
29.39 9.12
29.39 9.12
3.70 -
3.70 -
44.90 18.32_

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

a) Contract liabilities
Customers Balance in Wallet

b) Statutory dues payable

Total Other current liabilities

6.67 1.91
6.67 19
6.29 10.24
12.96 12.15
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15 Revenue from operations

(a)

(b)

(c)

16

17

18

Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Com pany's revenue from from operations:

For the year ended

Particul
iculars March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Sale of services

Revenue from Merchant Solutions 782.89 263.58
Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of traded goods 099 i
Total revenue from operations 783.88 263.58

Note:

Given that Company's products and services are available on a technology platform to customers globally, consequently,
geographical location of customers is not available.

the necessary information to track accurate

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a point in time 782.89 262,58
Goods Transferred at a point in time 0.9 :
Total revenue from operations 783.88 263,58

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue as per contracted price 783.88 263.58
Revenue from operations 783.88 263.58
Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contracts assets, and contract liabilities from contracts with customers.
For the year ended As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade Receivables (Refer Note 5a) 3.62 24,90
Contract Assels - Unbilled Revenue (Refer Note 5d) 138.05 511?;5:

6.67 i

Contract Liabilities - Customers Balance in Wallet (Refer Note 14a)

Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest income on:

- Bank deposits 0.21 0.31

- Income tax refund 0.23 4.61

- Security deposits carried at amortised cost 0.14 0.21

Liability written back = 0.24
0.58 5.37

Total

Purchase of traded goods

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Traded goods (Stock-in-trade) [Refer nole 6] 3.41

3.41

Changes in inventories of traded goods

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

As at the end of the year

Traded goods (Stock-in-trade) [Refer nole 6] (2.54)
As at the beginning of the year

Traded goods (Stock-in-trade) [Refer note 6] .

(2.54)
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19 Employee benefits expense

20

21

Particulars

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity Expense

Share Based Payment Expense (Refer note 37)
Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

270.22 176.37
557 219
3.75 1.86

26.68 69.38
2.56 0.80
318.78 250.60

For the year ended

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Particulars
March 31, 2025
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer Note 28) 0.38 0.69
Bank Charges 0.00 0.13
0.38 0.82

Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Particulars
March 31, 2025
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipments (Refer note 3) 2.18 3.42
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Refer note 4) 4.60 6.81
6.78 10.23

QOther expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Particulars
Rent (Refer Note 28) 0.66 0.43
Power and Fuel 0.97 0.88
Rates and Taxes 0.06 0.05
Insurance 1.46 357
Recoverables written off - 1.91
Repair and Maintenance
Building 2.13 -
Plant and Machinery 0.63 -
Other - 2.72
Marketing Expenses 0.56 1.21
Travelling and Conveyance 0.95 0.10
Courier and Logistics Expenses 562.11 191.39
Communication Costs 1.44 2.16
Foreign Exchange Flucluations Loss (Net) 0.02 -
Outsourced Support Cost 0.28 -
Legal and Professional Fees 3.06 3.66
Facility Expenses 2.37 3.20
Payment to Auditor (Refer note below) 2.66 2.40
Recruitment Charges 0.38 0.00
Provision for doubtful advances and recoverable 5.16 0.27
Provision for doubtful debts (Refer Note 5a) (5.16) 7.23
Server and Communication Costs 63.67 39.01
Payment Gateway Charges 1.78 1.33
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 0.29
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.53 0.64
Total 645.72 262.45
Note
Conlinuing Operations
(i) Payment to auditors:
Statutory Audit Fees 247 240
Out of Pockel Expenses .19 -
Discontinued Operations
(i) Payment to auditors:
Stalutory Audit Fees v 1.23
Out of Pocket Expenses . -
2.66 3.63
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23 Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

24
(a)

{b)

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

(a) Items that will not be reclassified lo profit or loss in subsequent years:
Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans*®

Gain on sale of equity & preference instruments carried at FVTOCI

Changes in fair value of equity & preference instruments carried at FVTQOCI

(1.39)

(b) tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years:
Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of a foreign operation

09

(1.39)

3.09

“Includes NIL (Previous year INR. 1.22 Million) in recognised in slatement of profit and loss from discontinued operalions.

Loss per share (EPS) ber of equily shares oulsta

nding for the year.

Basic earnings per equity share has been computed by dividing nel profit after tax by the weighted average numdi]utf\.«:z potential equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per equity share has been computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and

The following reflects the profit and share capital data used in the basic and diluled EPS computations:

For the year ended For the year ended
5 h 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Particulars e .
From Confinuing operations ‘183'07} 25515
Loss (A)
From Discontinued operations (Refer note 39) ) i
Loss (B)
From Continuing and Discontinued operations — lggﬂij
eiohec i [ 23,106 ;
Weighled average number of equity shares for calculating Basic EPS (D) b s
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Diluted EPS (E) - .
Nominal value per share
From Continuing operations — -
Basic Earnings/(Loss) per Share (A/D) e e
Diluted Earnings/(Loss) per Share (AVE)
From Discontinued operations ) i
Basic Earningsi(Loss) per Share (B/D) - bl
Diluted Eamings/(Loss) per Share (B/E) )
From Continuing and Discontinued operations — R
Basic Earnings/(Loss) per Share (C/D) b e

Diluted Eamings/(Loss) per Share (C/E)

<<This space has been intentionally left blank=>
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25 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial stalements requires management to make judgements, estimates an
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure ©
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment lo the carrying am
years.

5 thal affect the reported amounts of
Uncertainty about these
lies affected in future

d assumption af
f contingent liabilities. Lr
ount of assels or liabili

Olﬁer.disciosures relaling to the Company's exposure 1o risks and uncerlainties includes:
= Capital management (refer note 35)
= Financial nsk managemen! objectives and policies (refer note 38}

Judgements
In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the fallowing judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee
The Company do?lermines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any years
reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminale the lease, if itis reasona

covered by an option to extend the lease if itis
bly certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is
reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create_ an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses {he lease term if there Is 8 significant
event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option fo renew or to terminate (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation unce
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the nex
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepare
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising lhat are beyond the contro
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

{hat have a significant risk of causing a

t financial year, are described below. The Corlnpany based its
d. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
| of the Company. Such changes are

rtainty at the reporting date,

Impairment of Non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an assel or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions,
conducted at arm'’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is
based on @ DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is
nol yet commitied to or significant fulure investments that will enhance the assel's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

These estimates are most relevant lo goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Company.

Share Based Payments

Employees of the company receive remuneration
for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions,
measured using the fair value method. The cumula’
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has exp
expense or credit recognized in the statement of pro
beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense.

in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby employees render services as consideration
). In accordance with the Ind AS 102 Share Based Payments, the cost of equity-settled transactions is
live expense recognized for equity-seltled transactions at each reporling date until the vesting dale
ired and the company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
fit and loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation

involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortalily rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly

sensilive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

ubject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated, the management considers the

The parameler most s
ment bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

interest rales of govern

ty table . The mortality table tend fo change only at interval in response to demographic changes.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortali
d on expected future inflation rates. Further details about graluily obligalions are given in nole no.

Fulure salary increases and graluily increases are base
30.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assels and financial liabili
markels, their fair value is measured using valuation technigues including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observabl

where poscible, put where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial Instruments.

ties recorded in the balance sheet cannol be measured based on quoled prices in active
e markels
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Useful life of Property, plant and equipment
Propeft}-'. plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, If any. Such cost includes the cost e
replacing pant of the plant and equipment, When significant parts of plant and equipment are required (o be replaced at intervals, the Ccfrnpany
depreciates them separately based on their sr)ecnh:‘: useful lives, Likewise, wﬁen a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised In fhe
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition crileria are satisfied. Al other repair and mainienance casts are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. ‘

Depreciation on all property plant and equipment are provided on a written-down value method based on the estimated useful life - e
management has estimated the useful lives and residual values of all property, plant and equipment and adopted useful lives ussed on
management's assessment of their respective economic useful lives. The resin.ﬂual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusled prospeclively, if appropriate. Deprecialion on Lhe s
during the year is provided on pro-rala basis from the dale of purchase of the assels.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on Derecognilion of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Loss allowance on trade receivables

The C_Umpany uses & provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past d"".e
of various customers ih_at have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credllt
and other forms of credil insurance). The provision matrix is initially based on the Company's historical observed default rates. The Company wil
(‘:ahbrale the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conr_mlens
(ie. gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of. defatis in the
manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.

Al every reporting date, the historical observed defaull rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. The
assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.

The amount of ECLs is sensitive lo changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic cenditions may also not be representative of customer's actual default in the future. The Company considers
a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 180 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a

financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual

amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the cantractual cash flows.

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

As at Asat T

icul
SATAIRE March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 5.69 272

- Interest due on above
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 = F

along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which - "
have been paid but beyond the appointed making payment (which have been paid but

beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under

the MSMED Act 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The amount,of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, n .
until such date when the interes! dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED

Act 2006

5.69 2.72

The above information regarding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act (MSMED), 2006 has been determined to the extent identified and information available with the company pursuant to Section 22
of the Micro, Small and Medium enlerprises Development Act (MSMED), 2006.
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A

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans
The Company makes contribution towards Provident Fund and Pension Scheme to the defined contribution plans for eligible employees.

e

The Company has charged the following costs in Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Faor the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2025 March S1.2004
Employer's contribution to Provident fund and pension schemes 3.21 e
Employer's contribution to Employees National Pension System 2.36 2.90
Total* 5.57 6.42

“Includes NIL (Previous year INR. 2.54 Million) recognised in statement of profit and loss from discontinued operations.

Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity:

The gratuily plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employees who have completed five years of service are entitled to
specific benefit. The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitied to a benefit
equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service with part thereof in excess of six months subject to maximum limit of INR 2
million. The same is payable on termination of service or retirement or death whichever is earlier.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the
projected unit credit method, which recognises each year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlernent and measures each
unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government bonds as at the date of
actuarial valuation. Acluarial gains and losses (net of tax) are recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

The Company has a unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan

The following tables summarise the components of net berefit expense recognised in the stalement of profits or losses and amounts recognised in the

balance sheet for the respective plans:

Benefit liability

Particulars ot fe

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of obligation at beginning of the year 9.16 15.19
Interest cost 0.66 1.12
Current service cost 3.09 1.94
Actuarial (loss)/gain on obligation
- Economic assumptions 0.12 3.67
- Demographic assumptions - (0.35)
- Experience adjustment 1.27 (6.40)
Benefits paid - (6.01)
Present value of obligation at the closing of the year 14.30 9.16

Gratuity Cost recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:-

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current service cosl 3.09 1.94
Interest cost 0.66 1.12
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss™ 3.75 3.06

**Includes NIL (Previous year INR. 1.21 Million) recognised in statement of profit and loss from discontinued operations.

Gratuity Cost recognised through Other Comprehensive Income:-

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Actuarial gains

- change in economic assumptions 0.12 3.67

- change in demographic assumptions - (0.35)

- experience variance (l.e. Aclual experience vs assumptions) 1.27 (6.40)
Total*** 1.39 (3.08)

***Includes NIL (Previous year INR. 1,22 Million) recognised through other comprehensive income
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(iv)

]

(vi)

e AR SR e estimating the Company's defined benefit obligations are set out below:
Carticud As at As at

= March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate — -
Future salary increase 10.00% 10.00%
Average expected future working life (years) . 2836 30,46

Expected rate of return on plan asset
Retirement age (years)

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability**** 100% of IALM 100% of IALM
(2012 - 14) (2012 - 14)

Withdrawal rate (per annum)

= Up to 30 years 30.00% 30.00%

- From 31 years to 44 years 28.00% 28.00%

- Above 44 years 25.00% 25.00%

*"**Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ullimate represents published mortality table used for mortality assumption.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

] As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (0.26) (0.16)
b) Impacl due to decrease of 0.50 % 0.27 L
Impact of the change in salary increase
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 0.20 042
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (0.19) (0.11)

The sensilivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit cblige_:tion as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year. These analysis are based on a change in a significant assumption,

keeping all other assumptions constant and may nol be representative of an actual change in the defined ben
in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

efit obligation as it is unlikely that changes

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit obligation In future years:
As at As at

Paificulure March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 1.82 2.81
Between 2 and 5 years 8.55 3.24
Between 5 and 10 years 3.93 ain
Beyond 10 years - -

14.30 9.16

Total expected payments

The average dura

years.
<<This space has been intentionally left blank>>

tion of the defined benefil plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 31 March 2025: 2.96 years and 31 March 2024: 2.95
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29

30

o

Leases
Company as a Lessee

The CE”‘F‘\"'”_\' has lease contracts for warehouses and office spaces used in its operations. These genera
=¥ 1s e, r *

years The Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's tille 1o the leased assels. There

axtensk :

extension and termination options and vanable lease payments, which are further discussed below.

The Company also has r_onain leases contracts for office premises and cerlain facilities with leas
premises and cerlain facilities with low value. The Company applies the ‘short-lerm lease’ and ‘lease ©

these leases

@ terms of 12 months or less and lea
{ low-value assets’ recagnition exemptions for

Iy have lease taerms between 1 and §
are several lease conlracts that include

sas of office

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

Particulars Total
As at April 01, 2023 18,76

Deletions (3.27)
Depreciation expense (11.45)
As at March 31, 2024 4.4

Additions 17.86

Depreciation expense (4.60)
As at March 31, 2025 17.30

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Total
As at April 01, 2023 19.55

Deletions (3.53)
Accretion of interest 0.97
Payments® (12.63)
As at March 31, 2024 4.36

Additions 17.46

Accretion of interest 0.38

Paymenls (5.09)
As at March 31, 2025 171

*Includes INR. 5.11 Million of rental payments for discontinued operations.

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:

Pariculars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Lease Liabilities (Non-current) 13.68 -
Lease Liabilities (Current) 3.43 4,36
Total 17.11 4.36

1. The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed.
2 The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 9.00%, with maturity between 2023-2025.

The following are the amounts recognised in Statement of profit or loss:

For the year ended

For the year ended March

Particulars
March 31, 2025 31, 2024

Depreciation expense of nght-of-use assets 4.60 6.81
Interest expense on lease liabilities 0.38 0.69
Expense relating lo shori-term leases (included in other expenses) 0.66 0.43
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 5.64 7.93
Commitments
Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: Nil
Contingent liabilities

Nil

. Contingent Liabilities
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Related Party Transactions
(Related party under Ind AS 24)

Name of Related parties and related party relationship

Holding Company

Key Management Personnel
Gaurav Mangla

Gautam Kapoor

Saahil Goel

Kumar Tanmay

. Details of transactions and balances with related parties during the year:

' ' knawn as Shiprocket
hinrockel Limited (Formerly kn ' )
Fs’rivpate Limited and Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private
Limited) (with effect from June 24, 2022)

Director
Director (appointed with effect from June 22, 2022)

Director {appointed with effect from June 22, 2022)
Director (appointed with effect from June 22, 2022)

Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Revenue from Merchant Solutions

Shiprocket Limited (Formerly known as Shiprocket Private Limited and Bigfoot Retail Solutions
Private Limited)

Reimbursement of expense being paid on our behalf

Shiprocket Limited (Formerly known as Shiprocket Private Limited and Bigfoot Retail Solutions
Private Limited)

Contribution from parent entity (Share based payment options to employees)

Shiprocket Limited (Formerly known as Shiprocket Private Limiled and Bigfoot Retail Solutions
Private Limited)

Remuneration of key managerial personnel*
Gaurav Mangla
*Excludes employer's contribution to provident fund and gratuity

. Outstanding balances:

750.78 216.76
13.46 7.75
36.68 69.38
17.54 12.54

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Trade receivable
Shiprocket Limited (Formerly known as Shiprocket Private Limited and Bigfoot Retail Solutions
Private Limited)

Trade Payables
Shiprocket Limited (Formerly known as Shiprocket Private Limited and Bigfoot Retail Solutions
Private Limited)

Other financial liabilities
Shiprockel Limited (Formerly known as Shiprocket Private Limited and Bigfoot Retail Solutions
Private Limited)

Other financial assets

Shiprocket Limited (Formery known as Shiprockel Private Limited and Bigfoot Retail Solutions
Privale Limited)

Segment Information

0.62 42.93

51.24 7.75
3.70 =

138.05 53.10

The Company is engaged in providing logistics services and other ancillary activities of a similar nature in a single segment. Based on "Management
Approach”, as defined in Ind AS 108 — Operating Segmenls, the Chief Operaling Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the performance and allocates
resources based on the analysis of performance of the Company as a whole. Its operations are, therefore, considered to constilute a single segment in

the context of Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments.

-
o~ g )
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33 Fair values
uding thase with carrying amounts ihat are reasonable

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial Instruments, el
approximations of fair values:

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by calegories as of March 31, 2025 were as lollows: -
Financial assets/liabilities at fair value throug

Carrying amount

Particulars Note No. Amertised Cost Profit or loss Other Comprehensive Incomea

Assets:

Trade receivables 5a 362 - - .52
Cash and cash eguivalents 5hb 42:2?‘ - . g
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 5¢ 2,70 - i s
Securily deposils 5d 0.83 - - 0.83
Other financial Assels (current) 5d 138.76 - = ML
Total T - 5 188.18
Liabilities:

Lease Liabilities (non-current) 28 13.68 - = 13.68
Lease Liabilities (current) 28 3.43 - - 343
Trade Payables 12 171.13 i - 171.13
Other Financial Liabilities 13 44.90 . = 44.50
Total 53515 5 % 233.15

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2024 were as follows:
Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through _
Carrying amount

Parti ;
articulars Note No. Amortised Cost Profit or loss Other Comprehensive Income

Assets:
Trade receivables 5a 24.90 = = 24.90
Cash and cash equivalents 5b 116.86 = = 116.86
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 5¢ 4.71 = - 4.7
Security deposits 5d 5.02 - - 5.02
Other financial Assets (current) 5d 62.25 - - 62.25
Total 213.74 = - 213.74
Liabilities:
Lease Liabilities (non-current) 28 - - - -
Lease Liabilities (current) 28 4.36 - - 4.36
Trade Payables 12 55,67 - - 55.67
Other Financial Liabilties 13 18.32 - - 18.32
Total 78.35 - - 78.35

The following methods/assumptions were used lo estimate the fair values:
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables and other current lizbilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the

shorl-term maturities of these instruments.

<<This space has been intentionally left biank>>
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34 Fair value hierarchy

i § vel inpul that is signific.
All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are calegorised within the farr value hierarchy, described as follows. based cn the lowest ler g gnificant

to the fair value measurement as a whole.

_ . ' - bilities.
Level 1: This level of hierarchy includes financial assels thal are measured by reference to guoled (unadjusted) prices in active markels for identical assets of o

Level 2: This level of hierarchy includes financi
indirectly.

io n 4 7 ble cur
Level 3. This level of hierarchy includes items measured using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observa

the same instruments nor based on available market dala.

-?Decrllc vgluation lechm_ques uscd_ to value financial instruments is discounted cash flow analysls.
he following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities:

s rvable for such items, direclly or
al assels that are measured using inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are obse Y
rent market transactions in

Fair value measurement hierarchy for financial assels and liabilities as at March 31, 2025:

‘ = — lities at fair value through ____ carrying amount
Particulars Note No. Amortised Cost F.'rcl'il S ’:::elsflia I:‘Ionﬂer Comprehensive Income e
Quoted prices In active Significant unobservable inputs

markets

(Level 1) (Level 3)
Assets:
Trade receivables 5a 262 a - g2
Cash and cash equivalents sh 42.27 . - 42.27
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalen 5¢c 2'70 = = 2.70
Security deposits 5d 0.83 ) - 0.83
Other financial Assets (current) 5d 13876 . - 138.76
Toul 188.18 - = 188.18
Liabilities:
Lease Liabiliies (non-current) 28 13.68 . - 1368
Lease Liabilities (current) 28 343 . - 343
Trade Payables 12 171.13 . - 171.13
Other Financial Liabilities 13 44.90 = - 44 90
Total 23315 = - 233.15
Fair value measurement hierarchy for financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024:

Financial ts/liabilities at fair value through Carrying amount
Particulars Nate No. Amortised Cost Frofitorlose Other Comprehensive Income rying
Quoted prices in active Significant unobservable inputs

markets

(Level 1) (Level 3)
Assets:
Trade receivables 5a 2490 = - 24,90
Cash and cash equivalents 5b 116.86 = - 116.86
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalen sc 4.71 - - 4.7
Security deposits 5d 5.02 - - 502
Other flinancial Assets (current) 5d G2.25 - - 6225
Total 213.74 - - 213.74
Liabilities:
Lease Liabilities (non-current) 28 - - & -
Lease Liabilities (current) 28 4.36 - = 436
Trade Payables 12 55.67 - - 5567
Other Financial Liabiltties 13 18.32 - - 18.32
Total 78.35 - = 78.35

<=<This space has been intentionally left blank>>
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35 Capital Management
For the purpose of the company’s capital m

other equity reserves alinbutable to the equity
shareholder value,

The Company's objeclives when managing capilal are to:

anagement, capital includes issue

e ities premium and all
d equity capital, instruments entirely equity in na:;:;,inf: Ltl: trl'n.ax?mise the
holders of the company. The primary objective of the company's capilal manag

I ders; and
h nd benefits for other stakeho I
ue lo prov de relurns for shareholders a

= Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. - the cost of capital and the risks
menitors capital by regularly reviewing the capital structure. As a part of this review, the Company considers
he issued share capital. In the opinion of the Direclors, the Company's capital risk

The Company
associated with

is law.

As at
As at
4
Particulars Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 =
17.11 5
Lease Liabilities gg (42.27) (1 132?)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents i (2.70) (4.71)
Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenls (27.86) (117.21)
Net Debt (A) o1 -
Equity Share Capital 9 0.10 132.;3
Instruments entirely equity in nature i0 (18.18) 134. =
Other equity (17.96) ?
Total Equity (B)
) (45.82) 17.61
Capital and net debt (C=A+B)

Capital Gearing Ratio (%) (C/A)

Not Applicable since the company does not
have Net Debt as at year end.

i i {s attached to
i i hat it meets financial covenan
der to achieve this overall objective, the company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to E:;:gurf?ntaniial covenants would permit the bank to
TI.: °tnfrr;~.:‘ bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Eireachesf in m_elel!:gl e loegarand boerowiag: K e sk gl
edately i i nts of any interest-
i i i been no breaches in the financial covena
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have

i i i 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March

<<This space has been intentionally left blank>>




Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

CIN: U74140DL2015PTC418468

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

36

Tax expense

(a) Major components of tax expense

Particulars

Current tax

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years
Deferred lax

Tax Expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Income tax effect taken to Other Comprehensive Income

Total Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

(b) Reconciliation of average effective tax rate and applicable tax rate

For the year ended

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Particulars March 31, 2025
Loss before income tax expense (188.07) (398.20)
Applicable Tax Rate 25.168% 25.168%
Expected income tax expense == (47.33) (100.22)
Effect of Other non deductible items 10.32 56.52
Deferred tax not recognised on losses, unabsorbed depreciation and other items 37.01 43.70

Total Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

(c) Deductible temporary differences for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the Balance Sheet:

As at the year ended on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the company is having deductible tem
unabsorbed depreciation under the tax laws. However in the absence of reasonable certainty of realization,

unused tax losses expire upto B years,

porary differences, brought forward losses and
deferred tax assets have not been created. The

As at

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Deferred tax assets [/ (liabilities) arising on account of:

Deferred tax liability:

Difference in written down value of Right-of-use assets (4.35) (1.02)
Deferred tax asset:

Difference in written down value of fixed assets 2.99 1.02
Difference in written down value of Lease Liabilities 4.31 1.10
Other provision 7.72 4.95
Expenses allowed on payment basis - 0.13
Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful receivable) 6.48 6.41
Brought forward losses (including capital loss) 145.74 108.73
Unabsorbed depreciation 4.90 2.97
Deferred tax asset on carried forward loss restricted to deferred tax liability 167.78 124.28
Recognised in books Nil Nil

Maturity period of brought forward losses for which no deferred tax are recognised in the financial statements:

Year of expiry [Brought forward losses]

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Within one - three years
Within three - five years
Above five years

Above brought forward losses includes brought forward losses for current year as calculaled basis provisonal

578.07

income tax

Maturity period of Unabsorbed Depreciation for which no deferred tax are recognised in the financial statements:

432.00

Year of expiry [Unabsorbed Depreciation]

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Within one - three years
Within three - five years
Above five years

Unlimited [
970

o
Above unabsorbed depreciation Iosseo{[nqltu'd
L) .
&l el 8

19.48

dlculated basis provisonal income tax

11.79
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37 Contribution from Holding company :

During the year 2022-23, the holding company established Bigfoot Acquired Businesses Employee Stoc!
the same was approved by the shareholders in their meeting on 17th June 2022 ("EGM Meeting") aut
Stock Options to the Employees under ESOP 2022. The plan was set up so as to offer and grant, for the
in or outside India, and its Holding Company if any, and any successor Company thereof and may
Company, or of its Subsidiary Companylies), or its Holding Company, as determined by the Board a
Company in one or more tranches, and on such terms and conditions as may be fixed or determined by t
ESOP scheme. During the period/year ended 31 March 2025, the company has recognised expenses am
March 2024: 69.38 million) in accordance with the said arrangement.

k Option Plan 202
horizing the Boar

he Board, in

2 ("ESOP 2022") and

d to issue Employee

benefit of the Company, its Subsidiary
be granted to the Employees of the
t Ifs sole discretion, options of the

accordance with the

ounting to INR 36.68 million, (31

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Particulars

Number of options| WAEP (inRs.) [Number of options| WAEP (in Rs.)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3639 = 5558 T
Srmiediasing fheyeae a72 10 2,055 10
Exercised during the year i o ) )
Unvested options lapsed during the year (43) i (1.274) %
Outstanding at the end of the year £k i 553 o
Exercisable at the end of the year 3117 B 5,984 i
The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2025 is 10 years (March 31,2024 - 10

years). The exercise prices for options outstanding al the year end was Rs,10 (March 31, 2024 - Rs. 10). The weiglhted ave
the stock options granted during the year is Rs. 44,137.50 (March 31, 2024 - Rs. 44,137.50). The following tables list the in
used for the Stock option plans for the For the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31 2024 respeclively:

rage fair value for
puts to the models

As at

Particulars March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Expected volatility (%) 38.27% to 39.57%

38.66% to 39.54%

Risk free Interest rate (%) 6.49% to 6.74% 6.92%
Expected life of share options 10 years 10 years
44,137.50 44,137.50

Weighted average share price (in Rs.)
Model used

Black-Scholes
Option Pricing
Model

<<This space has been intentionally left blank>>

Black-Scholes
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38 _l:inancial Risk Management Objectives and Policies . ;
mhe Company's activities are exposed to variety of financial risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency nsk,‘ TFEQE;';P:S”::C;:;:;
anagement oversees the management of these ri i i t ensures that the Compamy'e i
q risks. The Company's senior managemen 4 managed in accordance with the

(a)

(b)

(c)

fied, measured an

anaging each of these risks which are summarized

gﬂ’:—‘ gover‘ncd by appropriate pp!icies and procedures and that financial risks are identi
b;gﬂ\‘i\’l.anys policies and risk objectives. The Company reviews and agrees on policies for m

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, foriegn currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and F.orr?mol:l:ly "s’_k'
Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, d bt and equity investments and derivative financial

instruments.
The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

g values of gratuity and other post-

e

The _apaiyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carryin o LS
provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities of foreign operations.

The foilowir:g‘assumplions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses: s i i
- The sensitivily olf the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed chan This is based on the financial
assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

ges in respeclive market risks.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate nsk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of (:har‘-ge,S i", AR AL RIS
rates. As Imajcmty of the financial assels and liabiliies of the Company are either non-interest erest bearing lnstruments, the
Company's net exposure to interest risk is negligible.

bearing or fixed int

(ii) Foreign Currency Risk

The ﬂu:._:tuatlon in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the standalone statement of profit or loss, where any

transaction references more than one currency or where assets/liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
te fluctuations. The

company. The Company underlakes transactions denominaled in foreign currencies and thus it is exposed to exchange ra i
Company has a treasury team which evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its exposure to exchan_ge ratn? I‘.‘ISKS
Company's net exposure to foreign currency risk is negligible.

and advises the management of any material adverse effect on the Company. The

Foreign currency sensitivity
Since the business of the Company doesn't involve material foreign currency transactions, its exposure to foreign currency changes is not

material.

(iii) Equity Risk

The Company's listed and non-listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties abou
investment securities. However, the company does not have investments

t future values of the

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial
loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables), including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

For trade receivables ageing, refer note 5a.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring
unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all imes maintain optimum levels of liquidily to meet its cash and collateral
requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate

sources of financing including loans from banks al an optimised cost.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.
As at March 31, 2025 Carrying amount __On Demand _ Upto 1 Year More than 1 year Total
Lease Liabilities 17.11 - 4.80 15.67 20,47
Others Financial Liabilities 44.90 - 44.90 v 44.90
Trade payables 171.13 - 171.13 - 171.13
Total 233.15 - 220.83 15.67 236.50
As at March 31, 2024 Carrying amount _ On Demand Upto 1 Year More than 1 year Total

Lease Liabilities 4,36 - 4.36 - 4.36
Others Financial Liabilities 18.32 - 18.32 - 18.32
Trade payables 55.67 - 55.67 = 55.67
Total 78.35 - 78.35 - 78.35

<<This space has been intentionally left blank>>
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39 Discontinued Operations «ite scheme of arrangements
(A) During the previous year, the board of directors of the company, in the meeting held on August 31, 2023 has nr:prmf_ﬂ“1 2 C'.jn'.'trit:j')(--%ra;mferor Company”) and
under section 230 to 232 and other applicable provision of the Companies Act 2013 belween Pickrr Technologies Priveta Ly any"). The scheme inter-alia
Shiprocket Limited (Formerly known as Shiprocket Privale Limiled, Bigfoot Retail Solutions Privale Limited) {"Tr"r'smmﬂe(.;mnfav:n}l Non-Convertible Nan-
provides for the Share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger is 48,267 (Forly-Eight Thousand Two H“”dmd. and ilxt):;;e issued for every 10 (Ten)
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares ("NCRPS") of Shiprocket having face value of INR 100 each fully Da'_d up .,h;
equity shares held in Pickir having face value of INR 10 each fully paid up. The Appoinled Date for the Scheme is April 1,2023.
; ment which was
On July 15, 2024, the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), New Delhi Bench sanclioned! approved the Compcsﬂe 5chem;3_ Uf"::;:dr:gﬁonzl Registrar of
made effective on August 1, 2024 upon filing of the certified copies of the NCLT Orders sanctioning the Scheme Wit (he rgspec‘-l;)ej erged Undertaking”) is
Companies. Pursuant to the Scheme becoming effective, the Last mile business of Pickrr Technologies Private Limited ( !e ;n 2023 i.e. the Appointed
demerged from Pickrr Technologies Private Limited and transferred to and vested in Shiprocket Private Limited with f:ff:ect from AS:I a. olnle.d data-up 1o the
Date as per Scheme. The transactions pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking of Pickrr Technologies Private LinRed ety Xe-2E
effective date of the Scheme have been made by Transferor Company on behalf of Transferee Company as per the Selame.

= As at
Particulars April 01, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets B6.12
Property, plant and equipment ?'90
Right-of-use assets :
Total non-current assets o
Current assets
Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 2

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 200.00

(iif) Other financial assets i
Current tax assets (net) 161.24
Other current assets 17.35
Total current assets 378.59
Total assets (A) 392.61
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Lease Liabilities 0.58
Provisions 9.90
Total non-current liabilities 10.48
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 486.47

(ii} Lease Liabilities 7.76

(iii) Trade payables

54.84

a) lotal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises;
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 457.72

(iv) Others Financial Liabililies 197.78
Other current liabilities 65.99
Provisions 9.05
Current tax liabilities (net) =
Total current liabilities 1,279.61
Total liabilities (B) 1,290.09
Capital reserve (A-B) (897.48)

Pursuant to the Scheme, the difference between the book value of the assets and liabilities transferred has been debited to the following reserves of the

Company:
Particulars As at

- April 01, 2023
Capital reserve 897.48

897.48
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Net results of Discontinued Operations

Particulars

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income (1)

Expenses
Employee benefils expense
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses
Total Expenses (Il)

Loss before tax (llI=I-1l)
Tax expense:

Current tax

Deferred tax

Total Tax Expense (IV)
Loss for the year (V=IlI-IV)

Other Comprehensive Income:

Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years:
(i) Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) (VI)

Total Comprehensive Loss for the year (net of tax) (VII=V+VI)

(B

have been applied as below:

i. The directly identifiable assets, liabilities, income and expenditures o

accounting records maintained by the Company. )
ii. All other assets, liabilities, income and expenditures, (including Common in nature) have be

basis.

Basis of Carve Out Financials with respect to Demerged Undertaking till effective date
The Financial Information is prepared in accordance with the Guidance Note on ‘Combi
the Institute of Charlered accounts of India (“ICAI") which sets out overall framework for
Information. In preparing the said carve-out Financial Information, principles as set out in the Guidance Note and acco

<<This space has been intentionally left blank>>

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

631.76
8.26

640.12
—

113.77
75.76
8.50
585.14
783.17

(143.05)

(143.05)

1.22

(141.83)

Carve-out Financial information’ (‘Guidance Note") issued by

the preparation and presentation of the carve-out Financial
unting method prescribed in the Scheme

f the demerged undertaking are based on the books af accounts and underlying

en allocated on the basis of Revenue, or any other reasonable
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i ccated in
o servers physically loca
40 The Company has maintained proper books of account as required by Jaw except for tha August22 MCA nofification wherein it doas nat have

India for the daily backup in relation to its accounting software till 31 Dec 2024,

However, w.e.{. 01 Jan 2025 the company have set up the process of Daily backup of data on servers physically located In India .

41 Corporate social responsibility ' )
ar on Accounting for expenditure
Pursuant to the requirement of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules theron and further guidance note issued by ICAI dunng the y& g 1o N (March 31,

o e as amol
gg:j“ﬁﬁ‘a‘“’ Social Responsibility (CSR) activities, the gross amount required to be spent by the Company towards CSR i
24 Ni

42 Ratio Analysis and its elements

: - — P

Rlaluo a:m!yms and its Numerator Denominator As at As at % Change Reason for Varianc

elements - -

March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024 _______——————;mmm

(a8)  Current ratio Current a 59%|Change is on acco

ssels Current liabilities 0.93 2.28 liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2025

(b)  Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Shareholder's = - Mot Applicable

Equity

{c)  Debl service Eamings for debt |Debl service = = = Not Applicable

coverage ratio service = Net Interest & Lease
profit after taxes + |Payments +
MNon-cash Principal
operaling Repayments
expenses

i i account of decrease in
d Return on equi Net Profits after | Awv 3.22 1.91 68%|Change IS on & ;
Eaz"o e taxes — Sh::ﬁ:!ders = g Shareholder's Equity during the year ended
Preference Equity March 31, 2025.
Dividend
t have inventory in the
e Inventory turnover | Cost of goods Average Invento 0.68 | NA The Company does no

f'agio L sold g ’ ¥ previous year ended March 31, 2024.

(0] Trade receivables  |Net credit sales = |Average Trade 54.97 a7 392%| Change is on account of increase én dre;'em;i

turnover ratio Gross credil sales |Receivable as compared to previous year ende ar
- sales return 31, 2024.

i . -35%|Change is on account of increase Iin average
Trade payables Net credit Average Trade 5.70 8.83 :

&g:ncver ratio - purchases = Payables trade payables during the year ended March
Gross credit 31, 2025. Further other expenses and
purchases - purchase has increased as compared 10|
purchase return previous year ended March 31, 2024,

(n)  Net capital turnover Net sales = Tolal Working capital = (44.69) 2.00 -2330%|Change is_on account of decrease in current

ratio sales - sales Current assels — assets during the year ended March 31, 2025,
return Current liabilities Further revenue has increased as compared to

previous year ended March 31, 2024,
()  Netprofit ratio Net Profit Net sales = Total (0.24) (1.51) -84%|Change is on account of increase in revenue
sales - sales as compared lo previous year ended March
return 31, 2024,
i) Return on capital Earnings before  |Capital Employed 10.48 (1.89) -654%|Change is on account of decrease in capital
employed interest and laxes |= Tanglble Met employed during the year ended March 31,
Worth + Total 2025,
Debt + Delerred
Tax Liability
(k)  Returnon Interest (Finance |lnvestment 0.06 0.08 -31%|Change Is on account of decrease in deposits
investment Income) during the year ended March 31, 2025,

*Ratios vanances have been explained for any change by more than 25% as compared to the previous year.
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I—————
I
any far holding any Benami property.

43 Other Statutory Information
i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been Iniliated ar pending against the. Compl

ii) The Company do nel have any ransaclions with companies struck off,

iil) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet 1o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory years.

i¥) The Company has not fraded or invested in Cryplo currency or Virtual Currency during the respective financial years.
iari i derstanding
i i ~rmediaries) with the un ‘
v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any olher person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Inte
that the Intermediary shall | o
. any (Ultimate 2 ]
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
erstanding (whether recorded in

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the und

writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: Ultimat
s 7 ing Party (Ulima

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Y

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimale Beneficiaries.

vi

e Beneficiaries) or

a T rdi ed as income during the year in
' ; ‘ : i n surrendered o disclos
i) 1 Li ich is not recorded in the books of accounts that has bee : ; ; )

the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of

i i s nol have the feature of
viii) The Company has used accounting software Tally for maintaining its books of account from 01 April 2024 to 31st Dec 2024, which doe!

recording audit trail (edit log) facility in the software.
ng its books of account which has a feature of

With effect from 01 Jan 2025, the Company has migrated to Oracle Netsuite as its accounting saftware for maintaini \ splication level except for logs
recording audit trail (edit log) and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software ?h'fﬂp 2 arty accounting software in
of certain attributes of deleted transactions and logs of changes made at administrator level (if any). Since, the company uses a ; ] pbase ki gl A
which the database is maintained by the service provider, the management is unable to comment whether audit llra|l f;alura at I.he_ atal o reel it W B
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, no instance of audit trail feature being tam:; statutory requirement
respect of accounting software where the audit trail has been enabled. Additionally, audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the b

for records retentions.

The Company has nol been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

ix)
x) The Company does not have any Scheme of Arrangements which have been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Act.
xi) The Company has complied with the the number of layers prescribed under of Seclion 2(87) of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers)
Rules, 2017,
As per our report of even date )
For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors
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